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Gomez, Gabriel

From: Wil Bowles Schools of Real Estate <reschool@hotmail.com>
Sent: Friday, May 31, 2019 8:16 PM

To: District5, Mail

Subject: Orlando Speedworld dragway

Categories: Constituent

{ am sending this as a complaint . When | moved to my home | was made aware of the drag racing that took place on
Wednesday and Friday and 1 or 2 special events per year. | can not complain about that. But the owner retired and it
was going to close i and a lot of people where happy about that prospect. Then it was sold to a new operator and the
racetrack went from 2 days a week to most weeks 7 days with special events at least 1 a month . As | am writing this
there is a large event wit a little racing and a lot of live music that doesn’t stop until 2 to 3 am. If you are not aware the
track was given a special exception from noise when first opened. | have been very disappointed that the sale of this
facility did not have a public review as to the nose exemption. [ ask that if now be reviewed and at the very least to ban
live music. The area of bithlo will never attain the economic improvements it needs as long as this track is allowed to
disturb the quality of life in east Orange County. Closing | am not expecting anything will come of this email as | am sure
the are very good at campaign contributions. James M Bowles 19124 Nash st Orlando 32833.



Mayor Jerry Demings
201 S. Rosalind Ave
Oriando, FL 32801

Oct 20, 2021
Dear Mayor,

| have lived in the Bithlo area near the Orlando Speed World for over 20 years
and | am writing concerning the Public Hearing coming up about it later this
month. October 26, | believe. | had recent back surgery and most recently a
heart procedure and am at home for right now. | may not be able to make the
hearing so that's why the letter.

Me and everybody | talk to about this situation with the track is just sick over the
way it is being run. Now the noise is simply unbearable with them running the
track again and again. Sometimes on weekdays beginning early in the day and
well into the night. Being operated as late as 3:00 am is a terrible deal but that
isn’t the entire issue at all. We can’t count on having an uninterrupted dinner, or
TV program or normal conversation with friends or family indoors and any
outdoor conversations or activities are liable to be seriously impacted. The cars
are so loud there is nowhere in our house to escape to normal ambient sound
levels. | can imagine those neighbors right next to the track must absolutely go
bonkers when they run. Not only are there cars going down the track, but there
is constant loud race car traffic moving around inside constantly getting up to
the area where they get in line to make a run. When we have complained to the
Sheriff’s Office people have simply been told “they are exempt from Orange
County noise regulations”. And, we didn’t find out until the recent BZA hearing
that is NOT true. There was an exemption granted around 1995 but only in
certain situations. I’'ve checked into a lot of things to do with the track and it has
become pretty clear the track, in the last several years has been violating the
noise ordinance as it applies to them on a constant basis. The previous operator
handied things in a way that was no problem. We occasionally heard the races
but were not disturbed by them like we have been about the last 8 years or so.
This is hell out here now with the noise.

When we moved here, we knew the racetrack was here and could at least
expect to hear them from our place. They had a sign on the front gate indicating
they ran on Friday and Saturday nights and occasionally some special events.
And THAT is the way it was. No problems as far as we were concerned and
several of the neighbors have said the same thing. What the hell happened to
cause the overwhelming problems we have now? Quite simply, it seems to just
be when a new track operator took it over. When calis to the track about the
noise were made, we got a few choice dirty words by a rude phone person and
the old “we have an exemption from the noise rules”. Again, that is not all there
is to the story. The exemption doesn’t cover any events unless it is a spectator



type event where taxable spectator tickets are soid. On the days they are
having these private testing sessions that can run from very early to very late
the spectator gate isn’t even manned at all. | found out the insurance companies
specifically do not allow spectators at these private test days. One day when
one race team was practicing, they had a uniformed guard that wouldn’t even let
people not associated with the race team on the property. Hence, one would
think, the Orange County Noise Control Regulations should absolutely apply and
be enforced on a complaint. This is a potential loophole that needs to be

plugged.

ADDITIONAL RACING TRACKS.

The building permits being requested by the track are concerning several things
that have been completed or are at a stand still because they got caught doing
things without permits. Lots of them. Not the least of these things are the
adding of more racetracks. A large area on the south part of the property was
built and is used as a figure 8 track for “drifting” events. The track is requesting
permitting for this and call it a truck or bus parking lot. Or, “just” a practice area
for those that don’t want to take a chance on hitting a solid wall on the big track.
A small grandstand has been brought over to the area. Odd, not many people
want to sit there and watch trucks or buses park. And while those usingitasa
practice track don’t want to take a chance on hitting a wall, they have no
problem with the possibility of hitting a grandstand with people in it? This is
simply another new racetrack and noise source especially annoying due to the
sound of screaming engines AND loud squealing from tires to raise the irritation
level.

An area in the slow down part of the drag strip has been fashioned to an
additional racing area for what is called “No Prep Drags”. Not mentioned by the
applicant at all. But the black tire marks clearly visible at the area indicates
what it has been used for. Yet another new noise source.

OTHER things called one thing but used for something else. What is purported
to be a storage building for track vehicles and equipment was supposedly built
with no permit because the property is zoned Agriculture, and the applicant
didn’t know one was needed. However, a former employee stated the building
was used by himself and the applicant to store “personal stuff” of theirs and yet
another was operating a wholesale car business out of it. Track vehicles and
equipment is generally stored in another area and outside. Additionally, the
applicant wanted to skip the permitting process to lessen the chances of
neighbor notification and avoid the possibility of zoning, noise and use issues
being raised.

Several thousand square ft. of concrete has been added on the west side of the

drag strip pit area. This was reported by the applicant done to replace existing
concrete that was crumbling and in poor condition. There was a small amount
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of existing concrete in place. Much more concrete was added. Word has it this
was done as some out of area racers would not come back unless it was done.
A welcome improvement by those using the facility. But, it appears, there are no
building permits or required approvals from any water management district
concerning run off from this area. From neighbor accounts this work was done
late evenings and weekends to keep it under wraps.

A permit to complete a larger restroom is requested by the applicant. The new
bathroom, while not complete, is larger and built over the area that was used as
the old drain field. A new drain field is now constructed south of the old
restroom building, appears to be way too close to a well that is a source for
drinking water and utilized to get the old bathroom back in service.

The original Special Exception to allow the racetrack included a single
restriction and that was the racetrack be built to the site plan presented

to Orange County at that time, 1965. This restriction has clearly been violated
and that alone gives Orange County the right to protect its citizens from being
the victims of a runaway noise polluter. In 1965 the original applicant for the
Special Exception stated the facility would only operate one or two days a week.
For aimost 50 years that is the way it was, but since 2013 with the current
operator the facility has simply turned into a GIANT nuisance to the people living
in the area and operates at a level FAR ABOVE what was intended. | suppose
the Special Exception could be revoked. Hours and days of operation can be
established. The partial exemption to Orange County’s Noise Control
Regulations could be removed. We are not asking that the facility be shut down
completely. Well, one neighbor has voiced that opinion. But overall, we are
simply looking for the protection Orange County can provide us to in fact BE
provided according to the remedies available.

Who benefits with this noise problem being resolved? Working people, school
children, babies, a stay-at-home parent, those being educated at home with
schooling through computers, pets, the patrons and workers at the new clinic
soon to open just north of the racetrack, and others.

Of some interest to me is the makeup of those considered “in favor” or
“opposed” at the BZA meeting about this issue. All were described as
neighbors. The larger percentage, those opposed unless the noise issue is
addressed were in fact “neighbors”. Those “in favor” seemed to be explaining
how they thought the facility was needed to keep operating. One of them told
me Mr. Moya had contacted him for support at the BZA meeting because the
neighbors were trying to get the place “shut down” and he didn’t live anywhere
near the track. If the addresses of the ‘in favor” group are checked, you will
more than likely find none of them were “neighbors” of the track. Pretty easy to
be in favor when you don’t live anywhere near the noise.
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Would a racetrack operating at the level Speed World does, or at any level, be
permitted sharing a property line with residents of Lake Nona, Celebration,
Windemere, Winter Park, Dr. Phillips, etc? Would you be “in favor” of one next to
your property line?

We have been bullied by this racetrack operation for some time now and areat
our wits end. Now that we know Speed World has violated the restriction placed
on the original Special Exception, Orange County has the means it needs to at
least get this noise issue under control. We urgently need your help. I'm
suggesting unless you experience the overwhelming loud noise coming from
that racetrack, you have NO IDEA the terrific negative impact it has on our lives.

Sincerely,

Tim Ray

18822 Frost Drive
Orfando, FL 32820

407-309-0610






asked for the track to be shut down or made any unreasonable requests. The request was the same from every person:
please set reasonable operating hours and install barriers. If any commissioner or mayor were to drive down Wellon
Ave, which directly abuts Speed World - you can see the track from the homes - there is not even thick landscaping
between the homes and the tracks.

| know this is lengthy but | will only have a very small, limited time to speak at the meeting. | appreciate your time and
consideration. All | ask is that you put yourself in our positions - would you want your county leaders to fight for you?
My neighbors and | cannot just up and move to Baldwin Park or Stoneybrook or the Springs or any of these other
communities - our small community needs your help to make our community better!

Sincerely,
Juanita Martinez

On Thu, Oct 21, 2021 at 10:22 AM <Arnaldo.Mercado@ocfl.net> wrote:

Good morning Ms. Martinez,

This facility, the Orlando Speed World Dragway, formerly known as the Bithlo Speedworld, Orlando Speedword and
Orlando Speedway, is in operation since the 1960s. | believe that you are referencing the September 1%, 1981 Board
approval that incorporated some conditions. From the historical records, the September 1%, 1981 Board decision that
incorporated additional conditions to the initial approval was rescinded by the Board, 2 days later, on September 3™,
1981.

Regarding the noise regulations, the Orange County Noise Ordinance contains a specific exemption related to the type
of activities that the Orlando Speed World Dragway perform on site and is as follow: (from Chapter 15, Article V of the
Orange County Code)

“Sec. 15-185. - Exemptions.

(18)

Any motor vehicle engaged in a professional or amateur sanctioned, competitive sports event for which
admission or entry fee is charged, or practice or time trials for such event, at a facility being used for such
purposes as of October 15, 1995;”

Breach of the peace may not be applicable in this situation as the County ordinance exempts that noise source from the
noise regulation.
























Citrus County Speedway and Track LLC

Who manages your racetrack? Can you provide full name, number, and email?
Cameron Ray, 352-341-5764

How long has your racetrack been open/fully operational?

The track has been operational for 65 years.

What are your hours of operation Mon-Sun?

We are exempt from the noise ordinance but it does not apply between the hours of 11pm-
7am. We do not run before 12pm usually.

Are there forms of delay that keep racers out past closing time?
Weather, excessive track clean-up.

Is your racetrack near a residential area? If so, what steps have been taken to ensure harmony
between racers and the surrounding neighborhood?

We are 1 mile away from the nearest residential neighborhood. There is an airport in between
us. We have landscaping and trees as buffers around our property.

Are there any complaints or issues that your racetrack has encountered that you would be
willing to share?

None



The Original Speedway — Lake County

Who manages your racetrack? Can you provide full name, number, and email?

Denise Rufer, declined contact info. Racetrack number: 352-874-2245

How long has your racetrack been open/fully operational?

The Speedway has been operational since 1968.

What are your hours of operation Mon-Sun?

The Original Speedway has scheduled races two times a month on the 1 and 3 Saturdays.
Doors open 10am, practice starts 12pm, races start 3pm, usually done by 8:30-9pm. Latest we
will stay out is 10-11pm. Hard stop at 11pm because of County Noise ordinance.

Are there forms of delay that keep racers out past closing time?

Yes, rain delays and accidents but because we begin our races at 3pm we do not have to stay
out past 11pm.

Is your racetrack near a residential area? If so, what steps have been taken to ensure harmony
between racers and the surrounding neighborhood?

Our racetrack is immediately next to a residential neighborhood called the villages. We have
landscaping buffers (trees) around our entire property except the front.

Are there any complaints or issues that your racetrack has encountered that you would be
willing to share?

None because neighbors know we only operate twice a month.

Summary:

All raceways contacted by the District 5 office have longstanding and agreeable relationships
with their respective Counties.

Only Gainesville Speedway is allowed to operate past the permit hours of 11pm (special use
permit) but they are generally done by midnight.

Both Citrus County and Lake County Speedways do not run races past 11pm.

Citrus County Speedway does not start races before 12pm. They are one mile away from the
nearest residents. Tree buffers and an airport separate the track from the residential
neighborhood.

All raceways contacted did not report major or excessive complaints about noise.
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Chapter 15 - NOISE

Footnotes:

(1) -

Editor's note— Section 2 of Ord. No. 3868, adopted June 22, 1993, repealed former Ch. 15, §§ 15-1—15-9, which pertained to similar
subject matter. Section 1 of the ordinance enacted a new Ch. 15, §§ 15-1—15-6, as herein set out. Former Ch. 15 was derived from §§
17A-1—17A-9 of the 1960 Code and Ord. No. 3803, §§ 1. 2, adopted Dec. 21, 1992,

Cross reference— Health and sanitation, Ch. 11.5; nuisances, Ch. 16, offenses, Ch. 17.

State Law reference— Environmental control, F.S. Ch. 403.

Sec. 15-1. - Legislative findings; declaration of necessity.

itis found and declared that:

(1) Excessive sound within the limits of the city is a condition which has existed for some time and the

amount and intensity of such sound is increasing.

(2) Such excessive sound is a detriment to the public health, safety, welfare and quality of life of the

residents of the city.

(3) The necessity in the public interest for the provisions and prohibitions hereinafter contained and enacted
is declared as a matter of legislative determination and public policy, and it is further declared that the
provisions and prohibitions hereinafter contained and enacted are in pursuance of and for the purpose
of securing and promoting the public health, safety, welfare and quality of life of the city and its

inhabitants.

(Ord. No. 3868, § 1, 6-22-93)

Sec. 15-2. - Definitions.

For the purpose of this chapter, certain words and phrases used herein are defined as follows:

A-weighted sound level means the sound pressure level in decibels as measured with a sound level meter using the

A-weighting network. The unit of measurement is the dB(A).
Commercial (land use) means all areas not otherwise classified as residential, as defined in this section.

Construction means any site preparation, any assembly, erection, substantial repair, alteration or similar action,

excluding demolition, for or on public or private rights-of-way, structures, utilities or similar property.

Continuous airborne sound means sound that is measured by the slow-response setting of a meter manufactured to

the specifications of ANSI § 1.4-1971 "Specification for Sound Level Meters," or its successor.
Daytime means 8:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. the same day.

Decibel (dB) means a unit for measuring the amplitude of sound, equal to 20 times the logarithm to the base 10 of
the ratio of the pressure of the sound measured to the reference pressure, which is 20 micropascals (20 micronewtons

per square meter).
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Demolition means any dismantling, intentional destruction or removal of structures from the utilities, public or

private right-of-way surfaces, or similar property.

Emergency means any occurrence or set of circumstances involving actual or imminent physical trauma or property
damage which necessitates immediate action. Economic loss shall not be the sole determining factor in the

determination of an emergency. It shall be the burden of an alleged violator to prove an "emergency."

Emergency work means any work made necessary to restore property to a safe condition following an emergency, or
to protect property threatened by an imminent emergency, to the extent such work is necessary to protect persons or

property from exposure to imminent danger or damage.
Freguency means the number of complete oscillation cycles per unit of time.

Impulsive sound means sound of short duration, usually less than one second, with an abrupt onset and rapid decay.

Examples of sources of impulsive sound include explosions and drop forge impacts.
Nighttime means 10:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m. the following day.

Noise means any sound which disturbs humans or other animals, or which causes or tends to cause an adverse

psychological or physiological effect on humans or other animals.
Noise disturbance means any sound which:

(1) Disturbs a reasonable person of normal sensitivities;
(2) Exceeds the sound level limits set forth in this chapter; or
(3) Is plainly audible as defined in this section.

Person means any person, person's firm, association, copartnership, joint venture, corporation, or any entity public

or private in nature.

Plainly audible means any sound or noise produced by any source, or reproduced by a radio, tape player, television,
CD player, electronic audio equipment, musical instrument, sound amplifier or other mechanical or electronic
soundmaking device, or nonamplified human voice that can be clearly heard by a person using his/her normal hearing

faculties, at a distance of 200 feet or more from the real property line of the source of the sound or noise.

Public right-of-way means any street, avenue, boulevard, sidewalk, bike path or alley, or similar place normally

accessible to the public which is owned or controlled by a governmental entity.

Public space means any lot, as that term is defined in section 30-23 of the land development code, which contains at

least one building that is open to the general public during its hours of operation.

Reasonable time when the limits of Table | and Table I-A in section 15-3(b) are exceeded or for a radio, tape player or
other mechanical soundmaking device or instrument within a motor vehicle is instantly. Otherwise, absent special
circumstances, "reasonable time" is 15 minutes in the case of nonvehicular sound emitters and two calendar days for

vehicular sound emitters.

Residential {land use) means all areas designated as "residential districts” in section 30-41(a)1) of the land
development code; as well as hospitals, as classified in the Standard Industrial Classification Manual, 1987, group

number 806; public and private elementary schools, middle schools, high schools, vocational schools, colleges and
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universities; areas designated as "conservation districts" in section 30-41(a)(6) of the land development code; areas
designated as planned development districts that contain dwelling units as defined in section 30-23 of the land

development code; and places of religious assembly as defined in section 30-23 of the land development code.

Sound means an oscillation in pressure, particle displacement, particle velocity or other physical parameter, in a
medium with internal forces that causes compression and rarefaction of that medium. The description of sound may

include any characteristic of such sound, including duration, intensity and frequency.

Sound level means the weighted sound pressure level as measured in dB(A) by a sound level meter and as specified
in American National Standards Institute (ANSI) specifications for sound-level meters (ANSI $1.4-1971 (R1976)). If the
frequency weighting employed is not indicated, the A-weighting shall apply.

Sound level meter means an instrument, including a microphone, an amplifier, an output meter, and frequency

weighting networks, for the measurement of sound levels.
Weekday means any day Monday through Friday that is not a "paid holiday" as defined in F.5. 8§ 110.117(1).

All technical definitions not defined above shall be in accordance with applicable publications and standards of the

American National Standards Institute (ANSI).

(Ord. No. 3868, § 1, 6-22-93; Ord. No. 960008, § 1, 12-8-97; Ord. No. 981314, § 1, 4-10-00; Ord. No. 110199, § 2, 9-15-11)

Cross reference— Definitions and rules of construction generally, § 1-2.

Sec. 15-3. - Prohibited acts.

(@) General prohibition. It shall be unlawful and a violation of this chapter to make, cause or allow the making of

any sound that causes a noise disturbance, as defined in_section 15-2.
(b) Sound causing permanent hearing loss.

(1) Sound level limits. Table | and Table I-A specify sound level limits which, if exceeded, will have a high
probability of producing permanent hearing loss in anyone in the area where the sound levels are being

exceeded. No sound shall be permitted within the city which exceeds the parameters set forth in Table |

and Table I-A.
TABLE 1. MAXIMUM CONTINUOUS SOUND LEVELS*
Duration per Day, Sound level (dB(A))
Continuous Hours
8 90
6 92
4 95
3 97
2 100
1% 102
1 105
Y2 110
Ya 115
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*When the daily sound exposure is composed of two or more periods of sound exposure at different
levels, the combined effect of all such periods shall constitute a violation of this section if the sum of the

percent of allowed period of sound exposure at each level exceeds 100 percent.

TABLE I-A, MAXIMUM IMPULSIVE SOUND LEVELS

Number of Repetitions per 24-Hour PeriodSound Level (dB(A))
1 145
10 135
100 125

(2) Exemptions. No violation shall exist if the only persons exposed to sound levels in excess of those listed

in Table | and Table [-A are exposed as a result of:

a. Trespass;

b. Invitation upon private property by the person causing or permitting the sound; or

c. Employment by the person or a contractor of the person causing or permitting the sound.

(c) Continuous airborne sound decibel limits. No person shall create, operate or cause to be operated on private
property any source of sound in such a manner as to create a continuous airborne sound which exceeds the
limits set forth for the source land use category as defined in_section 15-2 in Table Il when measured at a
distance of 200 feet or more from the real property line of the source of the sound. Any source of sound in

violation of this subsection shall be deemed prima facie to be a noise disturbance.

TABLE Il. MAXIMUM SOUND LEVELS (IN dB(A)) FOR SOURCE LAND USES*

Residential Commercial
Daytime NighttimeDaytime [Nighttime
61 55 66 60

*See_section 15-2, Definitions, for daytime and nighttime hours, and for land use definitions.

(d) Specific prohibitions. In addition to the general prohibitions set out in subsection (a), and unless otherwise
exempted by this chapter, the following specific acts, or the causing or permitting thereof, are hereby

regulated as follows:

(1) Motor vehicles. No person shall operate or cause to be operated a public or private motor vehicle, or
combination of vehicles towed by a motor vehicle, that creates a sound exceeding the sound level limits
in Table Il when the vehicle(s) are not traveling on public streets, highways, driveways, parking lots and

ways open to vehicle travel.

(2) Radios, televisions, electronic audijo equipment, musical instruments or similar devices. No person shall
operate, play or permit the operation or playing of any radio, tape player, television, electronic audio
equipment, musical instrument, sound amplifier or other mechanical or electronic soundmaking device
that produces, reproduces or amplifies sound in such a manner as to create a noise disturbance across a
real property boundary. However, this subsection shall not apply to any use or activity exempted in
subsection (e) below and any use or activity for which a special permit has been issued pursuant to

section 15-4.
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(3) Sounds resulting from emergency work as defined in_section 15-2.

(4) Any aircraft operated in conformity with, or pursuant to, federat law, federal air regulations and air traffic
control instruction used pursuant to and within the duly adopted federal air regulations; and any aircraft
operating under technical difficulties in any kind of distress, under emergency orders of air traffic control,
or being operated pursuant to and subsequent to the declaration of an emergency under federal air

regulations.

(5) All sounds coming from the normal operations of interstate motor and rail carriers, to the extent that
local regulation of sound levels of such vehicles has been preempted by the Noise Control Act of 1972 (42

U.S.C. § 4901 et seq.) or other applicable federal laws or regulations.
(6) Sounds from the operation of motor vehicles, to the extent they are regulated by F.S. § 316.293.

(7) Any nonamplified noise generated by public speaking activities conducted on any public property or

public right-of-way pursuant to legal authority.
{(8) Sounds produced at organized sporting events, by fireworks and by permitted parades on public property
or public right-of-way.
(Ord. No. 3868, & 1, 6-22-93; Ord. No. 960008, § 1, 12-8-97; Ord. No. 981314, & 1, 4-10-00; Ord. No. 110672, §8 1, 2, 7-19-
12)

Sec. 15-4. - Special permits.

(a) Permit process.

(1) Applications for a special permit for relief from the maximum sound level limits designated in this
chapter, except from Table | and Table I-A, for the events or activities described below, may be made in
writing to the city manager or designee. Except as provided in Table | and Table I-A, a special permit is not
required under this section if sound levels, including amplified sound, will not exceed the maximum

sound level limits designated in this chapter.

(2) The permit application shall include the name, address and telephone number of the permit applicant;
the date, hours and location for which the permit is requested; and the nature of the event or activity.
The application must be submitted at least ten days in advance of the event, not including holidays and

weekends.

(3) Upon receipt of the permit application, the city manager or designee will review the application and issue
a decision promptly, but in no event less than three days prior to the date of the event. If no decision is
issued by the time specified, the permit will be considered to be issued. The permit shall be issued
provided the proposed activity meets the requirements of this section.

(4) Any permit granted must be in writing and shall contain all conditions upon which the permit shall be

effective.

(5) The city manager or designee may prescribe any reasonable conditions or requirements he/she deems
necessary to minimize noise disturbances upon the community or the surrounding neighborhood,

including use of mufflers, screens or other sound-attenuating devices.

(6) Any final decision of the city manager or designee pursuant to this section which denies the applicant the
right to create sound levels, including amplified sound, which do not exceed the maximum sound level

limits designated in this chapter, except as provided in Table | and Table I-A, will be immediately reviewed
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as a matter of right by the circuit court upon the filing of an appropriate pleading by the city.

(b) Permits for entertainment. Permits may be granted for the purpose of entertainment under the following
conditions:

(1) The function must be open to the general public (admission may be charged).

(2) The function must take place on public property, or public space, provided only six functions requiring a
special permit may be held on any particular public space per calendar year.

(3) The permit will be granted for only four hours in one 24-hour day or any reasonable extension thereof as
authorized by the city manager or designee.

(4) The permit will only be granted for hours between 9:00 a.m. and. 12:00 midnight on all days other than
Friday and Saturday; and, on Friday and Saturday, between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 1:00 a.m. of the
following day, except in the following circumstances:

a. A permit will be granted for hours between 9:00 a.m. on New Year's Eve and 1:00 a.m. the following
day (New Year's Day).

b. A permit will be granted for hours between 9:00 a.m. and 2:00 a.m. the following day if there are no
private residences, hospitals or nursing homes within a 0.5 mile radius of the property where the
function is taking place.

(5) Functions for which the permits are issued shall be limited to a continuous airborne sound level not to
exceed 70 dB(A), as measured 200 feet from the real property boundary of the source property. When
one or more streets are closed adjacent to the source of the sound, the measurement shall be taken 200
feet from the boundary of the closed area.

(c) Other permits. Special permits for nonentertainment special purposes, other than for emergency work that is
exempt pursuant to_section 15-3(e)(3), may be issued under the following conditions:

(1) Nonrecurring.

a. If the special purpose relates to the operation of a trade or business, the special purpose shall not be
in the ordinary course of that trade or business; or

b. If the special purpose does not relate to the operation of a trade or business, the special purpose
shall not be an ordinary event in the affairs of the applicant;

(2) Recurring. If the special purpose is a recurring purpose, it shall not recur more often than four times each
calendar year; and:

a. The special purpose shall be essential to the operation of the applicant's trade or business; or

b. If the special purpose is not essential to the operation of a trade or business, the special purpose
shall be compatible with the ordinary activities of the surrounding neighborhood;

(3) Hours. The special permit may be issued only for hours between 7:00 a.m. and 11:00 p.m. the same day
on weekdays; and

(4) Duration. Special permits may be issued for no longer than one week, renewable by further application to
the city manager or designee provided the applicant otherwise meets the provisions of this chapter.

(d) Use of loudspeakers on exterior of building. No permit may be issued to permit the use of any loudspeaker
or sound device on the exterior of any building which at any time exceeds the sound level limits in Table Ii,
except those used for emergency systems or devices as allowed by section 15-3(d)(6) above.

(e) Fraternity or sorority events. Special permits shall be issued for off-campus fraternity/sorority events as

7/11



10/25/21, 1:15 PM Gainesville, FL Code of Ordinances
follows:

(1) Sound level permits may be obtained to allow an increased residential sound level of 65 dB(A) between
9:00 p.m. and 1:00 a.m. the following day on designated dates, which permits will be valid only at the
fraternity/sorority residence and only when all sources of music are located in a completely enclosed
building as defined in section 30-23 of the land development code. Each fraternity/sorority is responsible

for obtaining its sound level permit on the appropriate date.

(2) All fraternities/sororities will receive sound level permits on five dates each year, three of which shall be

the last Saturday of fall and spring rush and the Saturday of the University of Florida Homecoming.

(3) The off-campus fraternities/sororities, collectively, shall choose the two optional dates on which they may
receive additional sound level permits, which dates shall be submitted to the city manager or designee on
or before September 30th of each year. After the submission of dates, the city manager or designee will

approve and designate the optional dates hereinabove described.

(4) Other student organizations officially registered with the University of Florida may file an application with

the city manager or designee for issuance of a special permit for comparable events.

(Ord. No. 3868, 8 1, 6-22-93; Ord. No. 960423, § 1, 9-22-97; Ord. No. 960008, § 1, 12-8-97; Ord. No. 970646, § 1, 12-15-97;
Ord. No. 980395, § 1, 9-28-98; Ord. No. 980590, § 1, 10-26-98; Ord. No. 981314, § 1, 4-10-00; Ord. No. 000048, § 1, 8-14-
00; Ord. No. 000712, § 1, 1-8-00)

Sec. 15-5. - Measurement or assessment of sound.

(8) Measurement with sound level meter.

(1) The measurement of sound shall be made with a sound level meter meeting the standards prescribed by
ANSI $1.4-1971 (R1976). The instruments shall be maintained in calibration and good working order. A
calibration check shall be made of the system at the time of any sound level measurement.
Measurements recorded shall be taken so as to provide a proper representation of the source of the
sound. The microphone during measurement shall be positioned so as not to create any unnatural
enhancement or diminution of the measured sound. A windscreen for the microphone shall be used at all
times. However, a violation of this chapter may occur without the occasion of the measurements being

made as otherwise provided.

(2) The slow meter response of the sound level meter shall be used in order to best determine the average

amplitude.

{3) The measurement shall be made at any point on the property into which the sound is being transmitted
and shall be made at least three feet away from any ground, wall, floor, ceiling, roof and other plane

surface.

(4) In case of multiple occupancy of a property, the measurement may be made at any point inside the
premises to which any complainant has right of legal private occupancy; provided that the measurement

shall not be made within three feet of any ground, wall, floor, ceiling, roof or other plane surface.

(5) All measurements of sound provided for in this chapter will be made by qualified officials of the city who
are designated by the city manager or designee to operate the apparatus used to make the
measurements.

(b) Assessment without sound level meter. Any police officer or other official designated by the city manager or

designee who hears a noise or sound that is plainly audible, as defined in_section 15-2, in violation of this
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chapter, shall assess the noise or sound according to the following standards:

(1) The primary means of detection shall be by means of the official's normal hearing faculties, so long as the

official's hearing is not enhanced by any mechanical device, such as a hearing aid.

(2) The official must have a direct line of sight and hearing to the real property of the source of the sound or
noise so that the official can readily identify the offending source of the sound or noise and the distance
involved. If the official is unable to have a direct line of sight and hearing to the real property of the
source of the sound or noise, then the official shall confirm the source of the sound or noise by
approaching the suspected real property source of the sound or noise until the official is able to obtain a
direct line of sight and hearing, and identify the identical or same sound or noise that was heard at the
place of original assessment of the sound or noise.

(3) The official need not determine the particular words or phrases being said or produced or the name of
any song or artist producing the noise or sound. The detection of a rhythmic bass reverberating type of

noise or sound is sufficient to constitute a plainly audible noise or sound.

{(Ord. No. 3868, § 1, 6-22-93; Ord. No. 981314, § 1, 4-10-00)

Sec. 15-6. - Violation procedures.

(a) Violation of sound level limits; violation of plainly audible standard on other than posted property.
(1) Warnings:

a. When a designated official of the city determines that there is a violation of section 15-3 and the
sound is coming from non-posted property, the official shall issue a written warning to the person or
persons responsible for the sound. The warning shall advise the person of the violation, and of the
possible penalty if the person fails to eliminate the sound or reduce the sound so that it is within
permitted limits.

b. The person or persons receiving the warning shall have a reasonable time, as defined in_section 15-2,
to comply with the warning.

¢. Forthe purposes of this section, it is sufficient warning for all prohibited sounds if the person or
persons responsible for any succeeding sounds are warned of, or cited for, one or more offending
sounds of the same type within the previous year (365 days), or in the case of a business, in the time

period since ownership of the business changed, whichever is less.
(2) Citation, confiscation of sound emitter.

a. If the sound is not eliminated or is not reduced to allowable limits within a reasonable time after the
warning, or if the noise or sound is abated after warning and then reoccurs, the person so warned

and not complying shall be cited for a violation of this chapter.

b. The city manager or designee shall notify the operator of any device that produces sound in excess of
the limits set by Table | or Table I-A in section 15-3(b) that the device is a health hazard. The city
manager or designee shall have the power and authority to have the device removed or toned down
instantly until such time as it can be otherwise operated in compliance with this chapter.

(b) Violation of plainly audible standard on posted property.

(1) When a designated official of the city determines a person or persons are making, causing or allowing the

making of sound that is in violation of the plainty audible standard on property posted as described
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below, the official shall issue a citation for violation of this chapter to such person or persons.

Property shall be considered posted for the purposes of this subsection if at least one warning sign is
posted in a conspicuous place on the property, clearly visible and readable to all persons entering the

property, warning persons that noise that is plainly audible is prohibited. Signs shall read as follows:

WARNING
Playing a stereo
radio, or amplifier
that can be heard 200 feet
away is prohibited.
City Ord.Sec. 15-3

Letters in the word "WARNING" must be at least two inches high in bold type. Letters for the remaining
text must be at least one inch high in normal type, and the words "City Ord. Sec. 15-3" must be at least
one-half inch high in normal type. All letters must be light-reflective on a contrasting background. The
sign structure containing the required warning must be permanently installed with the word "WARNING"

not less than three feet and not more than six feet above ground level.

The city manager or designee may require a property to be posted if it is used for commercial purposes,

including as a parking lot for an adjacent business, and:

a. The business is generally unattended by the owner or an agent of the owner during normal operating
hours; or

b. Two or more citations for violation of this chapter resulting in payment of a fine or adjudication of

guilt by a judge are issued due to acts of patrons or visitors during any 90-day period.

(€) Other limits; complaint procedure.

(1)

Any complaint regarding a sound or noise disturbance based solely on its disturbing a reasonable person
of normal sensitivities must be filed by a person who is disturbed by the sound or noise. The burden of
proof of this complaint will be on the complainant if the complaint results in a hearing before a judge. The

complaint may be filed at the time of the disturbance or within a reasonable period of time after the fact.

When a complaint has been received, a designated official shall investigate the charges. If the official finds
probable cause to believe the owner/operator is in violation of this chapter, the official shall issue a

warning to cease and desist the violation.

If the owner/operator does not take corrective action within a reasonable time as defined in_section 15-2,
or if the noise or sound is abated after warning and then reoccurs, the official may issue a citation or file
a sworn complaint with the state attorney. For purposes of section 15-3(d)(5) (animal noises), the noise
will be considered to be unabated, or abated and reoccurring, if the official hears the same noise more
than ten minutes after issuing the warning; and the official may then issue a citation based on this

violation.

(d) Joint and several responsibility. The owner, tenant or lessee of property, or a manager, overseer or agent, or

any other person lawfully entitled to possess the property from which the offending sound is emitted at the

time the offending sound is emitted, shall be responsible for compliance with this chapter. It shall not be a
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lawful defense to assert that some other person caused the sound. The lawful possessor or operator of the
premises shall be responsible for operating or maintaining the premises in compliance with this chapter and

shall be punished whether or not the person actually causing the sound is also punished.

(e) Violation may be declared public nuisance. The operation or maintenance of any device, instrument, vehicle
or machinery in violation of any provisions of this chapter which endangers the public health, safety and
quality of life of residents in the area is declared to be a public nuisance, and may be subject to abatement

summarily by a restraining order or injunction issued by a court of competent jurisdiction.

(Ord. No. 3868, § 1, 6-22-93; Ord. No. 4016, § 1, 9-12-94; Ord. No. 951346, § 1, 5-28-96; Ord. No. 960008, § 1, 12-8-97,
Ord. No. 981314, § 1, 4-10-00; Ord. No. 050635, § 1, 10-23-06)

Sec. 15-7. - Penalties.

(a) The provisions of this chapter may be enforced by civil citation or by criminal citation. Any person not in
compliance with this chapter shall, upon conviction, be subject to the penaities designated in_section 1-9 or

section 2-339. Each violation shall be considered a separate offense, which can be prosecuted separately.

(b) Any person responsible for an unlawful sound shall be subject to the confiscation of the sound emitter or
emitters if convicted three times under this chapter within a 12-month period and provided the convictions
are for sounds created by the same or same type of sound emitter. Upon the third conviction, the
appropriate court shall authorize the city to confiscate the sound emitter until such time as the offender can
positively demonstrate to the court both willingness and ability to operate the emitter within the limits
prescribed by this chapter. Any further conviction shall authorize the permanent confiscation of the sound

emitter by the appropriate court.

(Ord. No. 4016, § 2, 9-12-94; Ord. No. 981314, 8 1, 4-10-00)
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Sec. 14-32. - Legislative findings.

It is found and declared that:

(1)

(3)

This article is enacted pursuant to Article Il, Section 7, of the Florida Constitution, which
provides that adequate provision shall be made by law for the abatement of excessive and
unnecessary noise, and by the home rule power of Lake County, Florida, set forth in F.S. §
125.01(1).

Excessive sound within the unincorporated county limits is a condition which is increasing in

severity with the continued residential and commercial growth of Lake County, Florida.

The necessity in the public interest for the provisions and prohibitions hereinafter contained
and enacted is declared as a matter of legislative determination and public policy, and it is

further declared that the provisions and prohibitions hereinafter contained and enacted are
in pursuance of and for the purpose of securing and promoting the public health, safety and

welfare of the citizens of the Lake County, Florida.

(Ord. No. 2005-3, § 2, 1-4-05)

Sec. 14-33. - Scope.

This article shall be effective throughout the unincorporated areas of Lake County, Florida.

(Ord. No. 2005-3, § 2, 1-4-05)

Sec. 14-34. - Excessive noise prohibited.

No person shall create, continue or cause to be created any excessive noise audible to persons within the

unincorporated areas of Lake County, Florida. Excessive noise shall mean a noise that is:

(1)

(2)

3)

(4)

Of such amount or of such duration, wave frequency or intensity as may be or is injurious to

human or animal life or property;

Of such amount, level, duration or character as to annoy, disturb, injure or unreasonably
interfere with or endanger the health, peace or comfortable enjoyment of life, property or the

conduct of business; or

Of such character and in such quantity or level as to be detectible by a considerable number
of persons or the public, so as to interfere with such persons or the public health, repose or
safety, or to cause severe annoyance or discomfort; or which interferes with the normal
conduct of business, or is otherwise detrimental or harmful to the health, comfort, living
conditions, welfare and safety of the inhabitants of the county.

The definition of "noise disturbance" includes sounds that are created within a municipality or
county other than Lake County, but which are detected within the unincorporated boundaries

of Lake County, Florida.
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Factors to be considered in determining whether such noise is excessive include, but are not limited to

the level of the noise, whether the origin of the noise is natural or unnatural, the nature of the zoning of the

area from which the noise emanates and the area of where it is received, the proximity of the noise to

sleeping facilities, the time of day or night the noise occurs, the duration of the noise and whether the noise

is recurrent, intermittent or constant.

(Ord. No. 2005-3, § 2, 1-4-05)

Sec. 14-35. - Other prohibited activities.

The following conduct, acts and circumstances are hereby declared to be prohibited:

(1) Residential construction and demolition. No person shall operate or cause the outdoor

operation within any residential zoning district of any tools or equipment used in
construction, drilling, repair, alteration or demolition work between the hours of 7:00 p.m.
and 7:00 a.m. the following day, except for emergency work by public service utilities or for
road construction by or on behalf of a governmental agency which is required by the
governmental agency to be done at night. This prohibition does not apply to construction
taking place in commercial or industrial zoning categories, to golf course maintenance, nor to
delivery and installation of concrete and other materials associated with residential slab

installation.

Vehicular refrigeration units. Vehicular refrigeration units located within residential zoning
districts shall not be operated between the hours of 9:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. the following

day.

For purposes of this article the term "residential zoning districts" shall include those areas zoned
as Ranchette District (RA), Agricultural Residential (AR), Rural Residential (R-1), Estate Residential (R-
2), Medium Residential District (R-3), Medium Suburban Residential District (R-4), Urban Residential
District (R-6), Mixed Residential District (R-7), Multifamily Residential (R-10), Residential Professional
(RP), Mobile Home Rental Park District (RMRP), Mobile Home Residential (RM), Recreational Vehicle
Park District (RV) and residential Planned Unit Developments (PUD).

(Ord. No. 2005-3, § 2, 1-4-05; Ord. No. 2017-49, 8 2, 10-10-17)

Sec. 14-36. - Knowledge and permission of property owner or occupant.

The continuation of excessive noise shall be deemed to continue with the knowledge and permission of

the property owner or occupant.

(Ord. No. 2005-3, § 2, 1-4-05)

Sec. 14-37. - Exemptions.
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. The following uses and activities shall be exempt from the provisions of this article:

(1)

(2)

3)

(8)

(9)

Sounds resulting from any authorized emergency vehicle when responding to an emergency
call or acting in time of emergency, and including any required equipment testing of
emergency vehicles during non-emergency times.

Sounds resulting from emergency work. Emergency work shall be defined to mean any work
made necessary to restore property to a safe condition following an emergency, or to protect
property threatened by an imminent emergency, to the extent such work is necessary to

protect persons or property from exposure to imminent danger or damage.

Any aircraft operated in conformity with, or pursuant to, federal law, federal air regulations
and air traffic control instruction used pursuant to and within the duly adopted federal air
regulations; and any aircraft operating under technical difficulties in any kind of distress,
under emergency orders of air traffic control, or being operated pursuant to and subsequent

to the declaration of an emergency under federal air regulations.

All sounds coming from the normal operation of interstate motor and rail carriers, to the
extent that local regulation of sound levels of such vehicles has been preempted by the Noise
Control Act of 1972 (42 U.S.C. 8 4901 et seq.) or other applicable federal laws or regulations.

Sounds coming from motor vehicles to the extent they are regulated by F.S. § 316.293.

Any nonamplified noise generated by noncommercial public speaking activities conducted on

any public property or public right-of-way pursuant to legal authority.
Sounds produced at:

a. Organized sporting events;

b. Events with an approved special event permit;

c. By fireworks; and

d. By permitted parades on public property or public right-of-way.

Construction of commercial or industrial structures properly permitted by the agency having

jurisdiction over such property.

Sounds produced by normal agricultural activities located in appropriate zoning districts.

(Ord. No. 2005-3, §8 2, 1-4-05; Ord. No. 2013-4, § 3, 1-22-13)

Sec. 14-39. - Enforcement and penalties.

(a) Criminal penalties. The sheriff of Lake County, Florida, and his deputy sheriffs are hereby

authorized and empowered to investigate and to arrest any person when there is probable cause

to believe that said person is violating any provision of this article and said person has been

previously warned by a deputy sheriff that his actions or omission of actions constitutes conduct

in violation of this article. Pursuant to section F.S. 8 125.69, any person who violates any provision
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(b)

(0)

of this article shall be subject to prosecution in the name of the state in the same manner as
misdemeanors are prosecuted; and, upon conviction, such person shall be punished by a fine not
to exceed five hundred dollars ($500.00) or by imprisonment in the county jail not to exceed sixty

(60) days or by both such fine and imprisonment.

Code enforcement special master. The Lake County Code Enforcement Special Master shall have

concurrent jurisdiction to enforce the provisions of this article.

Civil penalties. A code enforcement officer or any law enforcement officer is hereby authorized to
issue civil citations for the violation of any provision of this article, when based upon personal
investigation, the officer has reasonable and probable grounds to believe that a violation has
occurred. Any citation issued hereunder shall be a non-criminal infraction. The citation form shall

be that which has been approved by the board of county commissioners.

(1) Acitation for initial violation of section 14-34 which is not contested shall carry a reduced civil
penalty of one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00), provided that such reduced civil penalty shall
be paid to the clerk of the county court within ten (10) days of the alleged violator's receipt of
the citation. A citation for initial violation of section 14-35 which is not contested shall carry a
reduced civil penalty of fifty dollars ($50.00) provided that such reduced civil penalty shall be
paid to the clerk of the county court within ten (10) days of the alleged violator's receipt of the

citation.

(2) Acitation for a repeat violation which is a second violation of section 14-34 which is not
contested shall carry a reduced civil penalty of three hundred dollars ($300.00) provided that
such reduced civil penalty shall be paid to the clerk of the county court within ten (10) days of
the alleged violator's receipt of the citation. A citation for a repeat violation which is a second
violation of section 14-35 which is not contested shall carry a reduced civil penalty of one
hundred dollars ($100.00) provided that such reduced civil penalty shall be paid to the clerk of

the county court within ten (10) days of the alleged violator's receipt of the citation.

(3) Acitation for repeat violation of section 14-34, other than a second violation, and which is not
contested, shall carry a reduced civil penalty of four hundred fifty dollars ($450.00) provided
that such reduced civil penalty shall be paid to the clerk of the county court within ten (10)
days of the alleged violator's receipt of the citation. A citation for repeat violation of section

14-35, other than a second violation, and which is not contested, shall carry a reduced civil
penalty of one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00) provided that such reduced civil penalty shall be
paid to the clerk of the county court within ten (10) days of the alleged violator's receipt of the
citation.

(4) An alleged violator may contest the citation by requesting a hearing date from the clerk of the
court within ten (10) days of the receipt of the citation. A person who requests a hearing date
shall be deemed to have waived the right to pay the reduced civil penalty.

(5) If a citation for violation of this article is contested, the civil penalty imposed by the county
court shall not exceed five hundred dollars ($500.00).
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(6) Any person who willfully refused to sign and accept a citation issued by the officer shall be

guilty of a misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as provided for in F.S. Ch. 775.

(7) After issuing a citation to the alleged violator, the officer shall deposit the original citation and

one (1) copy with the clerk of the county court in Lake County.

(8) The county court, after a hearing, shall determine whether the alleged violator has committed
an infraction. If the commission of an infraction has been proven by the greater weight of the
evidence, the county court may impose a civil penalty not to exceed five hundred dollars
($500.00).

(9) A person who fails to pay the reduced civil penalty within ten (10) days of receipt of the
citation, or who fails to request a hearing, or who requests a hearing but fails to appear, shall
be deemed to have waived the right to contest the citation, and the county court may enter

judgment against the person for an amount not to exceed five hundred dollars ($500.00).

(Ord. No. 2005-3, § 2, 1-4-05)
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Industrial or manufacturing Daytime 75 |
|

Nighttime 75 \

Agricultural Daytime 75 !
Nighttime 75 l

!

(b) Interior noise within multiple-family dwelling units. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter, it

shall be unlawful for any person to create, maintain or cause to be maintained any sound for any period of

time within the interior of any multiple-family dwelling unit which causes the noise level to exceed those

limits prescribed in Table il. All such measurements as well as the method employed shall be consistent with

section 271-25.
Table Il

Multiple-Family Dwelling Units

Allowable Interior Sound Level Limit dB(A)

Daytime 55

Nighttime 45

() Maximum instantaneous sound level. The noise from any activity or from any permissible use of property

within the applicable land use district classifications of Citrus County shall be deemed a violation if the noise

level exceeds the limits set forth in Table Ill at any time during the measurement period. The minimum

measurement period shall be ten minutes. Sound shall be measured pursuant to_section 21-25-

Table Ill

Receiving Land Use District Time Sound Level Limit dB(A)
Residential Daytime 70

Nighttime 60
Government-owned buildings or property, institutional or Daytime 65
recreational Nighttime 55
Commercial or business Daytime 75

Nighttime 65
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1
1 hour 105 :
¥ hour 110
Ya hour or less 115

;adv=6;(Ord. No. 2010-A05, § 1, 2-9-10)

Sec. 21-25. - Measurement of sound.

(a) The measurement of sound or noise shall be made with a sound level meter meeting the standards
prescribed by the American National Standards Institute (ANSI), S1.4 American National Standard
Specifications for Sound Level Meters, or successor publications. The instruments shall be maintained in
calibration and good working order. A calibration check shall be made of the system at the time of any noise

measurement, both before and after the measurement is taken.

(b) Measurements shall be taken so as to provide a proper representation of the noise source. The microphone
during measurement shall be positioned so as not to create any unnatural enhancement or diminution of the
measured noise. No individual other than the operator shall be within ten feet of the sound level meter

during the sample period. A windscreen for the microphone shall be used at all times.

(c) The sound level meter shall be of at least two ANSI requirements. The sound level meter shall utilize the A-
weighted network when measurements are taken. The microphone shall be oriented in accordance with

instrument manufacturer's instructions.

(d) The measurement shall be made at the nearest adjacent real property line from the property on which the
noise source is located for outside measurements. Such noise measurements shall be made at least four feet
above the ground and at a point at least ten feet away from any walls, barriers, or other obstructions. For
inside measurements, concerning multifamily dwelling units, measurements shall be at least three feet from
any wall, ceiling or partition.

{e) All noise measurements provided for in this chapter will be made by designated enforcement agents of Citrus
County who are qualified to operate the apparatus used to take the measurements as provided for in this

article.

(f) The operator conducting noise-measurement tests shall document all noise-measurement results in a

written record. Said record shall include the following:

(1) The instrumentation used, including name, make type and serial number.

(2) Date of last laboratory calibration.

(3) On-site calibration verification before and after each series of measurements.
(4) Name and location of the measuring area.

(5) A detailed sketch of the measuring area.

(6) Time and date of measurements.

(7) Names of observers.
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mechanical equipment, including a power saw, sander, drill, grinder, lawn or garden tool, or similar
device, used in residential areas between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. the following day so as to

cause a noise disturbance across a residential real property boundary.

(9) Vehicle and motorboat repair and testing in residential areas. The repairing, rebuilding or testing of any
motor vehicle or motorboat within any residential areas between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m.

the following day so as to cause a noise disturbance across a residential real property boundary.

(10) Refuse collection. The collection of refuse with a refuse collection vehicle between the hours of 7:00 p.m.

and 6:00 a.m. the following day in a residential or noise sensitive zone.
(11) Testing of emergency signaling device.

a. The intentional sounding or permitting the sounding of any fire, burglar, or civil defense alarm, siren,
whistle, or similar stationary emergency signaling device between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00

a.m. the following day.
b. Any testing shall use a minimum cycle test time. In no case shall such test exceed 60 seconds.

¢. Testing of a complete emergency signaling system, including functioning of the signaling device and
personnel response to the signaling device shall not occur between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00
a.m. of the following day. The testing of a complete emergency signaling system shall be exempt from

the time limit specified in subsection (2) above.

(12) Fixed building or vehicular alarms. Except as permitted by subsection_21-26(11) or exempted by
subsections_21-29(a) and (b), the use of fixed building or vehicular alarms unnecessarily or for an
unreasonable period of time. Specifically, when sounded for false alarms or sounded for a period in

excess of 15 minutes.

(13) Electronically amplified signals. The sounding of any electronically amplified signal from any stationary
bell, chime, siren, whistle or similar device intended primarily for nonemergency purposes from any place
for more than ten seconds in any hourly period.

(14) Special exemption or variance. A violation of any requirement or condition of a special exception or

variance granted pursuant to_section 21-29 of this article.

{(Ord. No. 2010-A05, § 1, 2-9-10; Ord. No. 2011-A22, § 1, 9-27-11)

Sec. 21-27. - Regulations on motor vehicles.

(a8) Motor vehicles operating on public right-of-way. Motor vehicles on a public right-of-way are regulated as set
forth in Florida Statutes. Unless otherwise set forth within this article, sound level limits for or excessive

sound to a receiving land use district shall not apply.

(b) Competitive racing events. No person shall construct, alter or expand any installation or facility for
competitive racing events without first providing documentation and assurance for compliance with this
article, and without first receiving approval from the board of county commissioners. The documentation and
assurance above shall include, but not be limited to, the use of sound barriers, use of muffler devices, control

of direction and volume of loud speakers, and provisions for monitoring.

(Ord. No. 2010-A05, § 1, 2-9-10)

Sec. 21-28. - Exemptions.
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permit or variance is obtained pursuant to section 21-30 or_21-31, provided the activities shall be in

accordance with the conditions and limitations stated therein.

(Ord. No. 2010-A05, § 1, 2-9-10; Ord. No. 2011-A22, 8 2, 9-27-11)

Sec. 21-29. -

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Special exception.

A special exception to the noise standards set forth in this article may be issued for a single temporary public
or private special event or use upon written request to the county administrator or his duly authorized
representative within a reasonable timeframe prior to the date for which the relief is requested.

(1) Any waiver granted by the county administrator hereunder must be in writing and shall contain all

conditions upon which said permit shall be effective.

(2) The county administrator may prescribe any reasonable conditions or requirements deemed necessary
to minimize the adverse effects upon the community or the surrounding neighborhood, including but not

limited to the use of mufflers, screens or other sound attenuating devices.

(3) A special exception granted pursuant to this subsection shall be for a specified period, but shall not

exceed 15 days.

(4) A copy of the request shall be forwarded to the Citrus County Sheriff's Office. Recommendations of such

agency shall be considered in establishing the conditions required herein.

Any person desiring relief from the provisions of this article not provided for by subsection (a) above may
request and receive a special exception in the same manner as set forth in subsection (a) for the following

circumstances:

(1) Additional time is necessary for the applicant to alter or modify the activity or noise source in order to

comply with this article.

(2) The activity, operation or noise source will be of a temporary duration and cannot be done in a manner

that would comply with the provisions of this article.
(3) No reasonable alternative is available to the applicant.

(4) A special exception granted pursuant to this subsection shall be for a specified period, but shall not
exceed 60 days.

Applicants for special exceptions granted pursuant to this section shall comply with all reasonable conditions

and requirements deemed necessary by the county administrator including effective date, time of activity,

location and equipment limitations, and sound attenuation devices.

Waivers for all other uses shall only be issued as specified in_section 21-31.

(Ord. No. 2010-A05, 8 1, 2-5-10)

Sec. 21-30. -

(a)

Variance.

The planning and development review board (PDRB) may grant a variance from any provision to the noise

standards set forth in this article.
Any person seeking a variance shall submit an application to the department of development services.
Notice and hearing shall be pursuant to Citrus County Land Development Code section 2610.

At the hearing, the applicant may submit any relevant evidence or testimony. In deciding whether to grant or
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Sec. 21-33.

(a)

(b)

PM Citrus County, FL Code of Ordinances
The following procedures shall be followed by the enforcement agent when enforcing this article:

(1) The appropriate county enforcement agent shall investigate and determine if any noise is in violation of
the specific noise prohibitions provided in_section 21-26, or any noise level is in excess of the noise

control measurement standards in_section 21-22.
(2) Measurement techniques, when required, shall be done in accordance with_section 21-26.

(3) If a noise level is found to be in violation of this article, the appropriate enforcement agent shall give
warning to the person responsible for the sound. The warning shall advise the person of the violation and
of the possible penalty if the person fails to eliminate the sound or reduce the sound so that it is within

permitted limits or is not plainly audible.

(4) The person receiving the warning shall have a reasonable time to comply with the warning. Absent special

circumstances, reasonable time is 15 minutes.

(5) For the purposes of this article, it is sufficient warning for all prohibited sounds if the person responsible
for such sound has been warned of, or cited for, one or more offending sounds of the same type within
the previous 60 days, or in the case of a business, in the time period since ownership of the business

changed, whichever is less.

(6) If the sound is not eliminated or is not reduced to allowable limits within a reasonable time after the
warning, or if the noise or sound reoccurs after warning and abatement, the person so warned and not

complying shall be cited for a violation of this article as set forth in_section 21-33.

2010-A05, § 1, 2-9-10)

- Citation procedures.

Citation authorization. Any county enforcement agent is hereby authorized to issue a citation to a person
when, based upon personal investigation, the enforcement agent has reasonable cause to believe that the

person has committed a violation of this article.

Procedures. A citation issued by an enforcement agent shall be in a form prescribed by the county and shall

contain:

(1) The date and time of issuance.

(2) The name and address of the person to whom the citation is issued.

(3) The date and time the civil infraction was committed.

{(4) The facts constituting reasonable cause.

(5) The number of the section of the code violated.

(6) The name and authority of the enforcement agent.

(7) The procedure for the person to follow in order to pay the civil penalty or contest the citation.
(8) The applicable civil penalty if the person elects to contest the citation.

(9) The applicable civil penalty if the person elects not to contest the citation.

(10) A conspicuous statement that, if the person fails to pay the civil penalty within the time allowed, or fails to
appear in court to contest the citation, he or she shall be deemed to have waived his or her right to
contest the citation and that, in such case, judgment may be entered against the person for an amount

up to the maximum civil penalty.
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(d)

Citations to be deposited with the county court. After issuing a citation, the enforcement agent shali deposit the

original and one copy of the citation with the county court, by filing same with the clerk of the court.
Penalties.

(1) Aviolation of this article shall be deemed a civil infraction.

(2) The maximum civil penalty shall not exceed $500.00.

(3) A civil penalty of less than the maximum civil penalty shall be assessed if the person who has committed

the civil infraction does not contest the citation.

(e} Judgment of court. If a person fails to pay the civil penalty or request a hearing, fails to appear in court to

(8

contest the citation when a hearing has been requested, or fails to appear in court as may be required, the
court may enter judgment for an amount not to exceed $500.00 per infraction and/or may issue a rule to
show cause upon the request of the county. The court rule shall require such person to appear before the
court to explain why action on the citation has not been taken. If any person who is issued such rule fails to
appear in response to the court's directive, the person may be heid in contempt of court. At any hearing
pursuant to this article, the commission of a violation must be proved by a preponderance of the evidence.

The Florida Rules of Civil Procedure and Florida Evidence Code shall be applicable.
Payment of penalties. All civil penalties shall be paid to and collected by the clerk of the court as provided by
law.

Refusal to sign or accept citation. Any person who willfully refuses to sign and accept a citation issued by an
enforcement agent shall be guilty of a misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as provided in F.S. 8
775.082 or 775.083.

(Ord. No. 2010-A05, § 1, 2-9-10)

Sec. 21-34. - Penalty schedule.
(a) Penaities for uncontested violations shall be as set forth in Table V.
Table Vv

Section Description Class Penalty
21-23 Sound level limits $50.00
21-24 Noise sensitive zones I 75.00
21-25 Noise exposure 11 100.00
21-27(1)—(4) Specific noise prohibitions 50.00
21-28 Regulations on motor vehicles 50.00
21-27(15) Violation of conditions of special exception I 75.00
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(b) Class!and Il. A second violation of the same class | or class |l offense shall be double the amount shown on
the penalty schedule. Third and subsequent violations of the same class | or class Il offense shall require a
mandatory court appearance.

(c) Class Ilf and IV. Second and subsequent violations of a class Il or class IV offense will require a mandatory
court appearance.

(d) Class V. All class V violations shall require a mandatory court appearance and will be subject to the penalties

imposed by the court not to exceed $500.00.
(Ord. No. 2010-A05, § 1, 2-9-10)

Secs. 21-35—21-48. - Reserved.
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Billy Herndon, 3722 Palmire Street, Tampa, Florida, appeared to state
that if the request is granted he plans to move to Orlando. He stated that he owns
the Tampa Drag Strip also. He showed the board an artist's conception of the pro-
posed plans for their study. It will be called the Orlando Raceway Park and they
will keep the park theme with Orlando's general landscaping. It will be 3/4 of
a mile long. He feels that it wil) be good for Orlando as the people coming into
the area for the races will be using the Motels, restaurants, etc;' This sport is
now recognized to such an extent that automobile manufacturers are participating
in the sport and is the second largest spectator sport.

He stated that there is a desire for a drag strip in Orlando. There are
13 drag strips in the State of Florida. They plan on putting in the necessary
facilities to make it a first class operation. There will be no alcoholic beverages
sold on the premi§es.

Mr. Herndop introduced a member of the National Association, Eddie Buster
Couch, 2134 Rock Haven Circle, Decatur, Georgia, who informed the board that he is
known as Division Director of the National Hot Rod Association of the Southeastern
Division and they have 60,000 members in the U. S. There 179 tracts in the U, S.
and Hawaii and England. They also have Hot Rod Clubs in connection with the organi=
zation to help keep ;hildren of f of the streets. Various Civic organizations
sponsor these clubs.

The drawing of the Miami tract, which they are going to build in June,
was shown to the board for their information and Mr. Herndon, who will be the owner,
stated they plan to build one with minor changes for Orlando. A grandstand- will be
built for 1000 and when the need arises they will add to the size of the grandstand.

There is an existing easement sixty feet wide on the property and will be|
used for the entrénce to the property. Mr. Lawrence Hiatt, Box 161, Route L,
orlando informed the board that the easement was used in the mortgage on the propert
ih order that an entrance to the property would not be cut off. 1t is a matter of

record. Mr. Herndon advised the board that it will be paved to the highway. He

pointed out that it has been customary in the past to call the Highway Patrol a
half hour before the racing is finished and they help direct the trafffc. ;
Mr. Hargis submitted an Article, which was published in the Easter issue }
of the Magazine section bf the local paper, stating that 150 people in this area
are interested in the sport, although there is no drag strip in Orlando. There will
be all the safety features used in the proposed drag strip with a Cycione fence,
which is a double protective fence with a safety device. This device w 11 turn the
cars around when out of control. This helps prevent accidents. The grandstand will
be on the North side of the property a safe distance from the strip.

Another article published in the Corner Cupboard April 22, 1965, was
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also submitted by Mr. Hargis about an Orlando dragster, who has been racing on the

]
1
'
i
)

Tampa drag strip. The Article stated that dragsters in this area have had difficulty

because there are no facilities in the immediate area for such racing.
There were no objectors.

After due deliberation, and

Upon il y made by Carroll Ward, seconded by Michael Brosche,

ta : b sompiprrd—

14, Michael Clark, request for a Special Exception in an A-2 Zone for

television tower 1260 Ft. to 1500 Ft. maximum height (Channel 9) on the fol

described property: Lot 24, Seward Plantation Estates 4th Add., as recorded in Piat

lowing

Book T, page 141, Public Records of Orange County, Florida; AND Beg. 5L cor of Sec.

32, T225., R32E., thN. 2200 Ft., th W. 600 Ft., th S. 2200 Ft. to Sec.

line,

th E. 600 Ft. to P.0.B., which is located W. side Guy Rd., 3/4 mi. S. of Bearle

Rd.

Lester Levine, 140 South Court Street, Orlando, was present to represent

the applicant. Mr. Levine pointed out that the television tower would be for T.V.

Tower, Inc., a separate corporation rather than Channel 9 and two local broadcasters;

are interested in the tower. Educational T.V. will use the tower also. A series

of steps must be taken before the erection of the tower, the first being zoning.

The FAA did give them the go ahead signal and they will go back to them, if it is

approved for their requirements.

The property is 2% miles from Highway 50 and 3 miles west of the Bithlo

cutoff. There will be a transmitter building. There will be a 50 X 50 foot base

structure for the tower.

Mike Clarke, Administrative Assistant for Mid-Florida Television Corpora-

tion, 639 West Central Blvd., Orlando, Florida, appeared to state that the FAA has

assured them that the chances of getting 1200 feet are very excellent and they have

a better than 50-50 chance of getting 1500 feet and for that reason they put it to

the maximum footage. It will be a guide tower, which is a long narrow pole with

guide wires from 3/4 of the way up connectéd to anchors in the ground.

Mr. Levine explained that it is a joint effort between two stations to

improve their facilities. This will help the market value of the T.V. stat

The quality and range of the stations will be increased by the tower.

Board Member, Arne Steen, inquired, if the tower would obstruct air trave

and was informed it would be subject to FAA approval for this reason.

ions.

A wire was received by Mr. Rich, the Director, from R. H. and M., A. Welch(

6900 SW 24 Court Miramar, Hollywood, Florida, emphatically objecting to the request

on property abutting plat now in course of acquisition from Robert Bashore.
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Mr. Hérndon sfated épproxlmately 6:00 A.M. on the Qeékends és sometimes
they have aythree day major event. Mrs, Stern inquired as to the time
they start other theﬁ the théee day events. Mr. Herndon stated that
the time is set by the Natlonal Hot Rod Association.

Mr. Panico asked if anything could be doné to abate the nofse. Mr.

Herndon stated through the manufacturers and suppllers of equipment there

- are rules of the body which they are governed by, He must comply with

these rules. The facility |Is used nine to ten montﬁs out of the year.
Mr, Panico asked Mr. Harndon If he has any control as to the time
the races start. Mr. Herndon statedvthat the hours are always reasonable.
Mr. Panlco stated that when thls was originally contemplated he doubts
they anticipated a 29 hour operation. Mf. Herndon stated that the sport
Is growing but he Is not saying they would éonduct a 25 hour race., Mr.
Panlco asked when the races will start. Mr. Herndon stated that it will
start'January'21; 1978 and that the gates will open at 5:30 A.M. and
shoula finish by 10:30 P.M. but If It ralns they need the flexibility
to finlish the race. -
Mr. dary Atwood, Roufe 4, Box 101A, Orlando, Florfda, spoke In regard
to this request and stated that he has lived in his area for 9% years

and he |s opposed to the noise and the hours of operation. He Is not

here In any other capaclty. Mr. Panlco Inquired about the noise problems.v

Mr. Atwood stated LE is very bad.

Mrs. Edwards, 11620 E. Colonlal Drive, Orlando, qurlda. spoke in regard
to this request and stated that there are a number of moblle home parks
in that area‘with a number of senlor cltizens. For some events there
are spectator's cars backed up to Blthlo and there Is trouble getting
In and out. Late at night the‘nolse Is_bad. The noise sometimes goes
on until 2:00 A.M.

Mr, Smart referred his next qhestion to Mr. Atwood and stated that
Mr. Atwood started the petition and it mentions the drag strip snd the
oval tract. He wanted to know !f the Irregular shaped track was referred
to. Mr. Atwood stated that It Is hard to say as all the noise Is coming

towards him.’
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Is allminated, Sometimes [f the weather is bad they need the addftional
time to finish the race. 1f it ralns all w;ekend then the race [s
postponed, Hr, Ward inqulred about meets durling ths week., Hr. Herndon
stated thars have been none for the last three years. They race on
Friday nlght and Saturday night. There are some specia! events on Sunday
afternoons.

Hr. Ward asked how many times they had to operata past 11:00 P.H.

Mr. Herndon stated approximately six times, If that many. Mr. Panice

asked 1f they ever had to run past midnight. Hr. Herndon stated approxlmateiy
i

two or three times. It costs him money when the races run lates.
Mr. Ward Inquired If the facility was leasad now, Mr. Herndon stated

that it opens February 12, 1978 and he Is taking it back himself,

Mr. Panico asked how the operation has changed since 1965, Hr, Herndon

stated it has not changed at all. Hr. Panlco asked how it has changed
since 1972, Mr. Herndon stated that thay have the additlonal facllity.
Hr. Panico asked Mr. Herndon If he feels the nolse level or tha use
of the property has changed. Mr. Herndon stated that It has not changed.
They are sanctioned by the National Hot Rod Association. Mr. Penlco
asked !f he had any suggestions to cutting down the nofse level,
Mr. Herndon stated that he does not. He Is planning on putting up
a hedge and he has planted 14 oek trees. HMrs. Stern Inquired about
shrubbery. Hr, Herndon stated that he |s contemplating this and that
they are responsible people running the facllility. He cannot satlsfy
all the peopls. ﬁe Just asked the Board to consider his vested rights
and the participants of this sport. He gets along fine with his {mmediate
nelghbors.

Mr. Car) Welsingar, 2113 Moser Drlve, Orlando, Florida, spoke
In favor of thls request and stated he Is the race director of the
facllity. He has had 16 years experience. He has seen bables asleep
In thelr parents arms so he cannot see how they can hear the noise
two and three miles away. He recognfzes the complaint the people
have but he feels It Is exagerated. The faci)lity needs the flexibillty

of hours to operate sufficiently,

HEETING OF FEBRUARY 2, 1978 ) Page 92

3

It
I
b
i

SRR

'
+
i
{
§
JIIIIIII‘!'.’J




MEETING OF FEBRUARY 2, 1978 Page 93

Mr, Earl Taylor, spoke In favor of this request and stated he Is

Chlef of the Fire Department. An ambulance is on standby at a race and

records are kept as they must coltect money for belng there. The ambulance :

has returned at an average of 12:30 AWM. 0On the oval track, the ambulance

has been back at an average of 11:30 P.H.

Mr, Taylor further stated that if someone |f running In the race
from out of state and they only have one lap to flalsh and you have
to tell them to come back next weekend, you had better have the pollce
handy. Concarnling the petition, the person tﬁat has been there the
longest 1s Hr. Atwood who started the petition. HIis property was
recorded 11-26-68 which [s three years after the track was there.
1f the people do not 1lke the nofse out thera, why are they continuing
to buy and expand. Qut of the petition 22 are reglstered voters and
30 are property owners. ﬂr. Ward asked out of the 30 ﬁroperty owners
what the average length of time Is. Hr. Taylor stated that the oldest
Is Hr. Atwood and there Is one person who bought property In 1973
and went back In 1975 and bought more proﬁarty. Most of the people
bought property In 1973 and 1974, A1l of these people knew the drag
strip was [n the area. There Is a brick wall In the back of the drag
strip. |f someons knows something Is there, why move in and then
complain later. Thesa people knew the drag strip was there.

Mrs. Stern stated that by the same token what about the people
who own property there. Hr. Taylor stated that Mr, Carrigan owns
and has sold property there, Hr, Carrigan seat out a registered letter
and told péople he wil1l buy the propert* back If they don't want tha
land, .

Mrs. Francls Dickson spoke In rebuttal to this and stated that
Mr. Taylor made much effort to find out about the people who opposed

them. Those statistics are not very accurate. The cars sound 1lke

Jets,

In discusslon, Mrs. Austin stated that she would |lke to speak In
regard to the request. Her son and his friends go to this facility
and it Is a famlly type faclility, They do good things for the kids
which keeps them off the str;e:s. Mr. Elde stated that he concurs
with Hrs. Austin. Hrs. Austin stated that It Is a safe place, These
young people are golng to drag and she feels It Is a good place for
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